
Please ask for:
Linda Coote
Direct dial:
(023) 9254 5340
Fax:
(023) 9254 5587
E-mail:
5340

3rd February 2021

S U M M O N S

MEETING: Standards and Governance Committee
DATE: 11 February 2021
TIME: 6.00 pm
PLACE: Virtual
Democratic Services contact: Linda Coote

PAUL GRANT
BOROUGH SOLICITOR

MEMBERS OF THE COMMITTEE

Councillor Blackman (Chairman)
Councillor Mrs Batty (Vice-Chair)

Councillor Ms Ballard
Councillor Beavis
Councillor Chegwyn
Councillor Mrs Furlong
Councillor Herridge

Councillor Hylands
Councillor Johnston
Councillor Mrs Jones
Councillor Mrs Prickett
Councillor Scard

Public Document Pack



NOTE:

i. Councillors are requested to note that, if any Councillor who is not a Member of the Board 
wishes to speak at the Board meeting, then the Borough Solicitor is required to receive 
not less than 24 hours prior notice in writing or electronically and such notice shall 
indicate the agenda item or items on which the member wishes to speak. 

ii. Please note that mobile phones should be switched off or switched to silent for the duration 
of the meeting.

iii. This meeting may be filmed or otherwise recorded. By attending this meeting, you are 
consenting to any broadcast of your image and being recorded. 



Standards and Governance Committee
11 February 2021

AGENDA

1.  APOLOGIES FOR NON-ATTENDANCE 

2.  DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST 

All members present are required to disclose, at this point in the 
meeting or as soon as possible thereafter, any disclosable pecuniary 
interest or personal interest in any item(s) being considered at this 
meeting.

3.  MINUTES OF PREVIOUS MEETING

4.  DEPUTATIONS - STANDING ORDER 3.4 

(NOTE: The Committee is required to receive a deputation(s) on a 
matter which is before the meeting of the Committee provided that 
notice of the intended deputation and its object shall have been 
received by the Borough Solicitor by 12 noon on Tuesday 9th 
February 2021.The total time for deputations in favour and against a 
proposal shall not exceed 10 minutes)

5.  PUBLIC QUESTIONS - STANDING ORDER 3.5 

(NOTE: The Committee is required to allow a total of 15 minutes for 
questions from Members of the public on matters within the terms of 
reference of the Committee provided that notice of such Question(s) 
shall have been submitted to the Borough Solicitor by 12 noon on 
Tuesday 9th February 2021)

6.  AUDIT PROGRESS REPORT TO 28TH JANUARY 2021 

To update the committee on the progress of the Audit Plan 2020/21, 
agreed (July 2020), to the Members with responsibilty for 
governance. 

7.  ANNUAL AUDIT LETTER

The Annual Audit Letter summarises the findings from our 2019/20 
audit which was completed in November.

8.  ANY OTHER ITEMS 



This page is intentionally left blank



Standards and Governance Committee
19 November 2020

1

A MEETING OF THE STANDARDS AND GOVERNANCE COMMITTEE
WAS HELD ON 19 NOVEMBER 2020

Councillors Ms Ballard, Mrs Batty, Beavis, Blackman, Chegwyn, Mrs Furlong, Herridge, 
Hylands, Johnston, Mrs Jones, Mrs Prickett and Scard

18. APOLOGIES FOR NON-ATTENDANCE 

There were none

19. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST 

There were none

20. MINUTES OF PREVIOUS MEETING 

RESOLVED: That the minutes of the meeting held on 1 October 2020 be signed as a true 
and correct record.

21. DEPUTATIONS - STANDING ORDER 3.4 

There were none

22. PUBLIC QUESTIONS - STANDING ORDER 3.5 

There were none

23. LOCAL GOVERNMENT ETHICAL STANDARDS 

Consideration was given to a report by the Borough Solicitor and Monitoring Officer seeking 
approval for further liaison with Group Leaders and the Chairman of the S&G Committee 
regarding further areas of work identified in the report.

Officers clarified that should any amendments need to be made to the Code of Conduct or 
to the Constitution, they would require consideration and approval by Full Council.

Officers also pointed out that only the areas of best practice that require a substantive 
response from the Council had been included, the rest were already being complied with or 
did not apply.

Members were advised that the recommendations by the Committee on Standards in Public 
Life were reported back in January 2019 and hadn’t been carried forward into law yet. 

Members were advised that currently, Independent Persons were not under any restriction 
for term of office, but could be. The difficulties in recruiting and retaining suitable 
Independent Persons were recognised.

Public Document Pack Agenda Item 3



Standards and Governance Committee
19 November 2020

2

Members were advised to keep the recommendation regarding Social Media under 
consideration. Should the legal requirement change, Officers would advise Members at the 
appropriate time.

Members were advised that although not currently members of the LGA, if they offered a 
model of best practice, consideration would be given to adopt it and a proposal for an 
amendment to the Constitution would go to full Council.

Members were given clarification on the issue of the removal of criminal offences in regard 
to Disclosable Pecuniary Interest.

A Member wished to thank the Chairman and Borough Solicitor for agreeing to allow Group 
Leaders to be consulted on any further changes.

Members and Officers wished to offer a vote of thanks to Miss Sheena Dawson for her 
contribution as an Independent Person.

RESOLVED: 

That the Committee:

1. Endorsed the summary responses to the areas of best practice at Appendix 2
2. Approved the proposal that the Borough Solicitor and Monitoring Officer liaises 

further with Group Leaders and the Chairman of the Standards & Governance 
Committee either together or separately regarding further areas of work identified by 
this report.

24. AUDIT PROGRESS REPORT TO 3RD NOVEMBER 2020 

Consideration was given to a report by the Chief Internal Auditor updating the Committee 
on the progress of the Audit Plan 2020/21.

Members were advised that good progress had been made and several audits had taken 
place. The scope of some of the remaining audits would be reduced in order to complete 
the audit schedule, but this would not be a blanket reduction.

Members were advised that a member of staff would be required to work on the new 
business grants, which may impact the progress of the remaining audits, the extent of 
which was unknown.

Members were given clarification on the reasons why the Kier audits remained high, which 
was due to the inability to access properties under Covid restrictions.

Members received clarification on the roles regarding processing of RIPA applications. The 
Senior Responsible Officer was responsible for the administration and oversight of the 
RIPA Policy, with authorising officers reviewing applications from Council to undertake 
RIPA before going to the magistrates. 

Members wished to congratulate the audit team on the progress that had been made in this 
difficult time.



Standards and Governance Committee
19 November 2020

3

Members received reassurance that checks will be conducted on payments made and 
works commissioned by the Council as part of audits in the audit plan.

Members were advised that stringent checks had been carried out on all grant applications 
and officers were confident that despite attempts no fraudulent applications had been 
successful.

The Committee noted the report.

25. RIPA POLICY 

Consideration was given to a report by the Chief Internal Auditor seeking recommendation 
by the Standards & Governance Committee that the Policy and Organisation Board 
approve the Regulation of Investigatory Powers Act (RIPA) Policy 2020 

Members were advised that this was a policy update in particular regarding Authorising 
Officers and Senior Responsible Officer.

Members were concerned that covert surveillance may cause infringement of civil liberties 
and sought reassurances that it would only be used in key circumstances and that group 
leaders would be consulted as part of the process.

Members wished to congratulate the officers on the thoroughness of the report. 

RESOLVED: That the Standards and Governance Committee recommend that the Policy and 
Organisation Board approve the Regulation of Investigatory Powers Act (RIPA) Policy 2020

26. ANY OTHER ITEMS 

RISK POLICY

By reason of special circumstances, the Chairman determined that the following item be 
considered at this meeting notwithstanding the fact that the item had not been available for 
public inspection in accordance with the provisions of Section 100B(4)(a) of the Local 
Government (Access to Information) Act 1958.

This would allow the policy to be approved and implemented promptly

Consideration was given to a report by the Chief Internal Auditor seeking recommendation 
by the Standards and Governance Committee Governance that the Policy and Organisation 
Board approve the Risk Policy. 

Members were advised that the policy was an update on Council Risk Management 
Processes and it was there to embed a culture of risk awareness, to minimize and identify 
risk and enable suitable action is taken where needed.

Members were advised that any risks identified in staging events would be picked up in the 
organisation process that the Council has in place. 



Standards and Governance Committee
19 November 2020

4

Members suggested that those event organising processes may need updating to reflect 
Covid 19 restrictions.

RESOLVED That the Committee recommend that the Policy and Organisation Board 
approve the Risk Policy.

CHAIRMAN

Concluded at 6.47 pm



Purpose

To update the committee on the progress of the Audit Plan 2020/21, agreed (July 2020), to 
the Members with responsibility for governance.

Recommendations

a. That the Standards and Governance Committee note the progress of the Audit Plan 
2020/21 from 1st April 2020 - 28th January 2021.

1. Background & Purpose

1.1 The purpose of this report is to provide the Standards and Governance Committee with an 
overview of internal audit activity against assurance work completed in accordance with the 
approved internal audit plan. Members of this Committee approved the 2020/21 Annual Audit in 
July 2020 which consisted of 27 audit assignments.  

1.2 The progress of the Audit Plan has been severely impacted by the Covid-19 pandemic. 
Gosport Borough Council was running business critical services. Internal Audit activity resumed 
on the 6th July 2020 however staff were still assisting other departments during this time. Since 
17th August 2020, internal audit staff have been working full time on the Audit Plan however staff 
were required to assist in the administration of the grants process from December 2020. 

2. Report

2.1 Appendix A is the Audit Progress Report 1st April - 28th January 2021.

3. Conclusion

3.1 That the Committee note the Audit Progress against the 2020/21 Audit Plan.

Financial Services 
comments:

Nil

Legal Services comments: Nil
Crime and Disorder: Nil

Board/Committee: Standards and Governance Committee
Date of Meeting: 11th February 2021
Title: Audit Progress Report to 28th January 2021
Author: Chief Internal Auditor
Status: FOR NOTING

Agenda Item 6



Equality and Diversity: Nil
Service Improvement Plan 
implications:

The delivery of the annual audit plan is a key function of the 
service.

Corporate Plan: It supports the Council in pursuit of excellence through 
delivering an effective and high quality governance evaluation 
and monitoring.

Risk Assessment: The work performed by Internal Audit assists in reducing the 
overall risk exposure in the Council’s operations and provides a 
high degree of assurance to management in placing reliance on 
the adequacy of internal controls within their Services

Background papers: None
Appendices/Enclosures: Appendix A – Audit Progress Report 1st April - 28th January 

2021

Report author/ Lead 
Officer:

Paul Somerset - Chief Internal Auditor



Internal Audit Progress Report 11th February 2021
Paul Somerset, Chief Internal Auditor



I n t e r n a l  A u d i t  P r o g r e s s  R e p o r t

Page 2
Gosport Borough Council Internal Audit Service is performed in compliance with the Public Sector 
Internal Audit Standards (PSIAS). Compliance to the standard was internally assessed in May 2020 

1. I n t r o d u c t i o n  

Internal Audit is a statutory function for all local authorities. 
The requirement for an Internal Audit function in local government is detailed within the Accounts and Audit (England) Regulations 2015 as to:

Undertake an effective internal audit to evaluate the effectiveness of its risk management, control and governance 
processes, taking into account public sector internal auditing standards or guidance

The standards for ‘proper practices’ are laid down in the Public Sector Internal Audit Standards [the Standards – updated 2016].

Internal auditing is an independent, objective assurance and consulting activity designed to add value and improve an organisation’s operations. It helps an 
organisation accomplish its objectives by bringing a systematic, disciplined approach to evaluate and improve the effectiveness of risk management, control 
and governance processes

This report includes the status against the 2020/21 internal audit plan.



I n t e r n a l  A u d i t  P r o g r e s s  R e p o r t

Page 3
Gosport Borough Council Internal Audit Service is performed in compliance with the Public Sector 
Internal Audit Standards (PSIAS). Compliance to the standard was internally assessed in May 2020 

2 . A u d i t  P l a n  P r o g r e s s  a s  o f  2 8 t h  J a n u a r y  2 0 2 1

There are 24 audits in the revised plan for 2020/21.

To date, 10 (42%) have been issued, 2 (8%) are in draft report, 8 (33%) are work in progress and 4 (17%) are yet to be initiated. 

Significant progress has been made since the last meeting with 6 audits completed and 2 in draft report stage, which means the testing is complete and the 
outstanding work is agreeing actions with the clients. 

S t a t u s A u d i t s

Identified 4

Fieldwork 8

Draft Report 2

Issued 10

17%

33%

8%

42% Identified 

Fieldwork

Draft

Issued

Audit Plan Progress as of 28th 
January 2021



I n t e r n a l  A u d i t  P r o g r e s s  R e p o r t

Page 4
Gosport Borough Council Internal Audit Service is performed in compliance with the Public Sector 
Internal Audit Standards (PSIAS). Compliance to the standard was internally assessed in May 2020 

3 . O n g o i n g  I n t e r n a l  A u d i t  I n v o l v e m e n t /  C o v i d  u p d a t e  

COVID-19
Gosport Borough Council moved the Business Critical services on the 18th March 2020, due to the Covid pandemic. Internal Audit staff were redeployed to 
aid the council in processing Business Grants and assisting in the Covid welfare work. Internal Audit began to recommence activities in early July 2020 
however staff were still undertaking Grant work and assisting in business recovery. Due to this redeployment and the shutting down of Internal Audit 
activities, the audit plan progress has been significantly impacted. As such, the Audit Plan is behind schedule for completion.  
Following the recently announced Lockdowns in November and December, along with a further raft of Grants, resources within the Internal Audit team 
have been significantly impacted. The Senior Auditor has been redeployed to assist with the administration of the grants until such a period to which the 
workload is manageable. 

Internal Audit has provided advice, ongoing reviews and involvement work in the following area. (For reference, advice is only recorded when the time 
taken to provide the advice exceeds one hour):

 Regulation of Investigatory Powers Act (RIPA) - authorisations (if applicable) and policy review
 Anti-Money Laundering - policy review
 National Fraud Initiative (NFI) to facilitate national data matching carried out by the Cabinet Office
 National Anti-Fraud Network (NAFN) bulletins and intelligence follow up
 Standards & Governance Committee - reporting and attendance 
 Audit Planning and Consultation
 Risk Management & Annual Governance Statement 



I n t e r n a l  A u d i t  P r o g r e s s  R e p o r t

Page 5
Gosport Borough Council Internal Audit Service is performed in compliance with the Public Sector 
Internal Audit Standards (PSIAS). Compliance to the standard was internally assessed in May 2020 

4 . A u d i t  P l a n  S t a t u s / C h a n g e s

As noted in section 3, Internal Audit resourcing has been reduced in order to assist with the administration of Grants relating to the Covid-19 pandemic. As 
a result, the following audits, in agreement with the s151 officer, have been deferred from the 2020/21 plan until 2021/22. 

 Homelessness
 Hostels
 Council Tax and NNDR

5 . A r e a s  o f  C o n c e r n  
General Data Protection Regulation (GDPR) - Limited Assurance

Four high, four medium and 2 low risk exceptions arose from the audit. 

Overall ‘core’ requirements were addressed as part of GBC’s GDPR programme, for example reviewing and updating key data protection policies and 
producing an Information Asset Register (IAR). This is supported by comprehensive guidance on the Council’s intranet, the responsibility now largely sitting 
with service areas to apply guidance to their areas.
However there remain significant gaps, which at the time of the audit, were not being addressed at a pace to mitigate the risks faced. The main areas of 
concern surround:

 Lack of a Register of Processing Activities, as required by GDPR 
 Missing and out of date Information Asset Registers (IAR). IAR's are used to identify all information assets an organisation holds to enable the 

management of that data in accordance with GDPR.
 Data Sharing Agreements - 26 categories within the IAR's showed that data is shared within external parties however only 7 data sharing 

agreements were evidenced. Given that the IAR's were identified as incomplete, it is likely that there is a significant gaps within the data sharing 
agreements required.

 GDPR within contracts. Testing sampled 5 contracts, 2 of which could not be located and 2 were expired and referred to pre GDPR legislation. 

Overall, there was a lack of oversight noted within GBC's approach to compliance with GDPR. While foundation steps had been put in place prior to the 
implementation in May 2018, the continuation of the project and reporting on progress has stalled without reporting to Senior Management. The agreed 
actions, designed to mitigate the risks identified, are due to be completed by the end of February 2021. 



I n t e r n a l  A u d i t  P r o g r e s s  R e p o r t

Page 6
Gosport Borough Council Internal Audit Service is performed in compliance with the Public Sector 
Internal Audit Standards (PSIAS). Compliance to the standard was internally assessed in May 2020 

6. A s s u r a n c e  L e v e l s

Internal Audit reviews culminate in an opinion on the assurance that can be placed on the effectiveness of the framework of risk management, control and 
governance designed to support the achievement of management objectives for the area under review.

Audits rated No Assurance are specifically highlighted to the Governance and Audits and Standards Committee 
along with any Director’s comments. The Committee is able to request any director attends a meeting to 

discuss the issues.

A s s u r a n c e  L e v e l D e s c r i p t i o n  /  E x a m p l e s

Assurance No issues or minor improvements noted within the audit but based on the testing conducted, assurance can be placed 
that the activity is of low risk to the Authority

Reasonable Assurance Control weaknesses or risks were identified but overall the activities do not pose significant risks to the Authority

Limited Assurance Control weaknesses or risks were identified which pose a more significant risk to the Authority

No Assurance Major individual issues identified or collectively a number of issues raised which could significantly impact the overall 
objectives of the activity that was subject to the Audit

NAT No areas tested



I n t e r n a l  A u d i t  P r o g r e s s  R e p o r t

Page 7
Gosport Borough Council Internal Audit Service is performed in compliance with the Public Sector 
Internal Audit Standards (PSIAS). Compliance to the standard was internally assessed in May 2020 

7 . E x c e p t i o n  R i s k  R a n k i n g

The following table outline the exceptions raised in audit reports, reported in priority order and are broadly equivalent to those previously used.

Any critical exceptions found the will be reported in their entirety to the Governance and Audits and Standards Committee along 
with Director’s comments

P r i o r i t y  L e v e l D e s c r i p t i o n

Low Risk 
(Improvement)

Very low risk exceptions or recommendations that are classed as improvements that are intended to help the service fine tune its control framework 
or improve service effectiveness and efficiency.  An example of an improvement recommendation would be making changes to a filing system to 
improve the quality of the management trail. 

Medium Risk These are control weaknesses that may expose the system function or process to a key risk but the likelihood of the risk occurring is low. 

High Risk

Action needs to be taken to address significant control weaknesses but over a reasonable timeframe rather than immediately.  These issues are not 
‘show stopping’ but are still important to ensure that controls can be relied upon for the effective performance of the service or function.  If not 
addressed, they can, over time, become critical.  An example of an important exception would be the introduction of controls to detect and prevent 
fraud. 

Critical Risk
Control weakness that could have a significant impact upon not only the system function or process objectives but also the achievement of the 
Council’s objectives in relation to: The efficient and effective use of resources, The safeguarding of assets, The preparation of reliable financial and 
operational information, Compliance with laws and regulations and corrective action needs to be taken immediately.



I n t e r n a l  A u d i t  P r o g r e s s  R e p o r t

Page 8
Gosport Borough Council Internal Audit Service is performed in compliance with the Public Sector 
Internal Audit Standards (PSIAS). Compliance to the standard was internally assessed in May 2020 

8 .  2 0 2 0 / 2 1  A u d i t s  c o m p l e t e d  t o  d a t e  ( 2 8 t h  J a n u a r y  2 0 2 1 )
Legionella- Housing 

Exceptions Raised

Critical High Medium Low

0 0 0 2

Overall Assurance Level

Assurance

Agreed actions are scheduled to be 
implemented by April 2021

Assurance Level by Scope Area

Achievement of Strategic Objectives NAT

Compliance with Policies, Laws & Regulations Assurance

Safeguarding of Assets Assurance

Effectiveness and Efficiency of Operations Assurance

Reliability and Integrity of Data NAT 

Two low risk exceptions relating to outdated policy and procedures however significant changes are not required.

Urbaser - Streetscene

Exceptions Raised

Critical High Medium Low

0 0 4 1

Overall Assurance Level

Reasonable Assurance  

Agreed actions are scheduled to be 
implemented by January 2021

Assurance Level by Scope Area

Achievement of Strategic Objectives Assurance

Compliance with Policies, Laws & Regulations Reasonable Assurance

Safeguarding of Assets NAT

Effectiveness and Efficiency of Operations Reasonable Assurance

Reliability and Integrity of Data Reasonable Assurance

The 4 medium risk exceptions relate to historic open jobs, lack of contract management meeting minutes, lack of inspection forms being retained and minor 
calculation errors in payable profit



I n t e r n a l  A u d i t  P r o g r e s s  R e p o r t

Page 9
Gosport Borough Council Internal Audit Service is performed in compliance with the Public Sector 
Internal Audit Standards (PSIAS). Compliance to the standard was internally assessed in May 2020 

GDPR - Executive

Exceptions Raised

Critical High Medium Low

0 4 4 2

Overall Assurance Level

Limited Assurance  

Agreed actions are scheduled to be 
implemented by February 2021

Assurance Level by Scope Area

Achievement of Strategic Objectives NAT

Compliance with Policies, Laws & Regulations Limited Assurance 

Safeguarding of Assets NAT

Effectiveness and Efficiency of Operations NAT 

Reliability and Integrity of Data NAT

Details noted on page 5 of this report

Governance - Executive

Exceptions Raised

Critical High Medium Low

0 0 3 3

Overall Assurance Level

Reasonable Assurance  

Agreed actions are scheduled to be 
implemented by May 2021

Assurance Level by Scope Area

Achievement of Strategic Objectives Limited Assurance 

Compliance with Policies, Laws & Regulations Reasonable Assurance 

Safeguarding of Assets NAT

Effectiveness and Efficiency of Operations Assurance 

Reliability and Integrity of Data NAT

The medium risk exceptions relate to risk management training, outdated corporate plan and monitoring corporate objectives



I n t e r n a l  A u d i t  P r o g r e s s  R e p o r t

Page 10
Gosport Borough Council Internal Audit Service is performed in compliance with the Public Sector 
Internal Audit Standards (PSIAS). Compliance to the standard was internally assessed in May 2020 

Covid19 Procurement - Finance

Exceptions Raised

Critical High Medium Low

0 2 1 0

Overall Assurance Level

Limited Assurance  

Agreed actions are scheduled to be 
implemented by April 2021

Assurance Level by Scope Area

Achievement of Strategic Objectives NAT

Compliance with Policies, Laws & Regulations Limited Assurance 

Safeguarding of Assets NAT

Effectiveness and Efficiency of Operations NAT

Reliability and Integrity of Data NAT

The two high risk exceptions relate to non-compliant spend and an incomplete contracts register. The medium risk exception relates to formally 
documenting waivers to procurement rules.

9 . F o l l o w - u p  A c t i o n  C a t e g o r i s a t i o n

The following table outlines the follow up categories used to describe the outcome of follow up testing completed.

F o l l o w  U p  C a t e g o r i e s D e s c r i p t i o n

Open No action has been taken on agreed action. 

Pending Actions cannot be taken at the current time but steps have been taken to prepare. 

In Progress Progress has been made on the agreed action however they have not been completed.

Implemented but not Effective Agreed action implemented but not effective in mitigating the risk.

Closed: Verified Agreed action implemented and risk mitigated, verified by follow up testing.



I n t e r n a l  A u d i t  P r o g r e s s  R e p o r t

Page 11
Gosport Borough Council Internal Audit Service is performed in compliance with the Public Sector 
Internal Audit Standards (PSIAS). Compliance to the standard was internally assessed in May 2020 

1 0 . 2 0 2 0 / 2 1  F o l l o w - u p  A u d i t s  t o  d a t e  ( 2 8 t h  J a n u a r y  2 0 2 1 )

Mayor Events and Silver - Housing  

Original Exceptions Raised

Critical High Medium Low

0 1 0 0

Latest implementation date 
scheduled during the original audit 
was in March 2020.

Original Assurance Level Follow-up Assurance Level

Limited Assurance Assurance

  Follow Up Action
Open Pending In Progress Implemented but Not 

Effective
Closed: 
Verified

Closed: Not 
Verified 

Closed: Management 
Accepts Risks

Closed: No Longer 
Applicable

0 0 0 0 1 (high) 0 0 0

Closed: Not Verified Client has stated action has been completed but unable to verify via testing.

Closed: Management Accepts 
Risk Management has accepted the risk highlighted from the exception.

Closed: No Longer Applicable Risk exposure no longer applicable. 



I n t e r n a l  A u d i t  P r o g r e s s  R e p o r t

Page 12
Gosport Borough Council Internal Audit Service is performed in compliance with the Public Sector 
Internal Audit Standards (PSIAS). Compliance to the standard was internally assessed in May 2020 

1 1 . A u d i t s  i n  D r a f t  t o  d a t e  ( 2 8 t h  J a n u a r y  2 0 2 1 )

Audit Directorate Draft Since
Projected Issue 

Date Revised Comments

Fees and Charges 
Follow Up

Executive 5/12/20 2/2/2021

Social Media 
Follow Up

Housing 22/1/21 2/2/2021

1 2 . A u d i t s  i n  P r o g r e s s  t o  D a t e  ( 2 8 t h  J a n u a r y  2 0 2 1 )

Audit Directorate Delayed
Projected Issued 

Date
Revised Issued 

Date Comments



I n t e r n a l  A u d i t  P r o g r e s s  R e p o r t

Page 13
Gosport Borough Council Internal Audit Service is performed in compliance with the Public Sector 
Internal Audit Standards (PSIAS). Compliance to the standard was internally assessed in May 2020 

Accounts Receivable Finance N/A February 2021

Leisure Centre Finance / Streetscene Yes December 2020 February 2021 Auditor has been redeployed to 
assist with Business Grants

Covid Business Grants Executive N/A March 2021

Covid Financial 
Amendments

Executive N/A March 2021

Covid Assurance 
Reporting

Executive N/A March 2021

Procurement Finance N/A February 2021

Housing Benefits Finance N/A February 2021

Payroll Finance N/A February 2021



T
his page is intentionally left blank



1

Board/Committee: Standards and Governance Committee 
Meeting

Date of Meeting: 11 February 2021
Title: EY – Annual Audit Letter 2019/20
Author: Kevin Suter
Status: FOR NOTING

Purpose

The Annual Audit Letter summarises the findings from our 2019/20 audit 
which was completed in November. It summarises the key messages that 
were reported in our Audit Results Report presented to the Policy and 
Organisation Board on 25 November 2020. Our Annual Audit Letter is an 
important report that has been prepared in line with the requirements of the 
National Audit Office’s Code of Audit Practice. 

Recommendation

 Receive the Annual Audit Letter and consider the conclusions 
reached by the auditor.

1 Background

1.1 The National Audit Office’s Code of Audit Practice requires 
us to issue an Annual Audit Letter summarising the work 
we have carried out to discharge our statutory audit 
responsibilities. 

2 Annual Audit Letter

2.1

2.2

2.3

Financial statements
We issued an unqualified audit opinion on 27 November 
2020.

Value for money conclusion
We issued an unqualified value for money conclusion on 
27 November 2020.

           Consistency of other information
Other information published with the financial statements 
was consistent with the Annual Accounts.
. 

Agenda Item 7



2

2.4

2.5

2.6

2.7

2.8

3

3.1

4

4.1

Annual Governance Statement
The Annual Governance Statement was consistent with 
our understanding of the Council.

Use of audit powers
There were no matters that we needed to report in the 
public interest or take formal audit action on. 

Whole of government accounts
We reported our findings on the Whole of Government 
Accounts return to the NAO on 27 November 2020. There 
were no issues to highlight to the NAO.

Report to those charged with governance
We presented our Audit Results Report to the Policy and 
Organisation Board on 25 November 2020. 

Audit certificate
On 27 November 2020 we certified the closure of the 
2019/20 audit.

Risk Assessment

The Annual Audit Letter forms part of the auditor’s 
statutory role and should be reviewed as part of the 
Council’s governance arrangements.

Conclusion

The Annual Audit Letter for 2019/20 is attached for 
consideration and noting.

Financial Services comments: Comments within report
Legal Services comments: N/A
Crime and Disorder: N/A
Equality and Diversity: N/A
Service Improvement Plan 
implications:

N/A

Corporate Plan: N/A
Risk Assessment: N/A
Background papers: N/A
Enclosures: Annual Audit Letter 2019/20



3

Report author/ Lead Officer: Kevin Suter, Associate Partner, Ernst & 
Young



This page is intentionally left blank



Gosport Borough
Council
Annual Audit Letter for the year
ended 31 March 2020

January 2021



Ref: EY-000092651-
01

Page
Section 1 Executive Summary 3

Section 2 Purpose and Responsibilities 8

Section 3 Financial Statement Audit 11

Section 4 Value for Money 19

Section 5 Other Reporting Issues 21

Section 6 Focused on your future 24

Appendices

Appendix A Audit Fees 26

Contents

Gosport Borough Council 2

Public Sector Audit Appointments Ltd (PSAA) have issued a ‘Statement of responsibilities of auditors and audited
bodies’. It is available from the Chief Executive of each audited body and via the PSAA website (www.psaa.co.uk).

This Statement of responsibilities serves as the formal terms of engagement between appointed auditors and
audited bodies. It summarises where the different responsibilities of auditors and audited bodies begin and end, and
what is to be expected of the audited body in certain areas.

The ‘Terms of Appointment (updated April 2018)’ issued by PSAA sets out additional requirements that auditors
must comply with, over and above those set out in the National Audit Office Code of Audit Practice (the Code) and
statute, and covers matters of practice and procedure which are of a recurring nature.

This Annual Audit Letter is prepared in the context of the Statement of responsibilities / Terms and Conditions of
Engagement. It is addressed to the Members of the audited body, and is prepared for their sole use. We, as
appointed auditor, take no responsibility to any third party.

Our Complaints Procedure – If at any time you would like to discuss with us how our service to you could be
improved, or if you are dissatisfied with the service you are receiving, you may take the issue up with your usual
partner or director contact. If you prefer an alternative route, please contact Hywel Ball, our Managing Partner, 1
More London Place, London SE1 2AF. We undertake to look into any complaint carefully and promptly and to do all
we can to explain the position to you. Should you remain dissatisfied with any aspect of our service, you may of
course take matters up with our professional institute. We can provide further information on how you may contact
our professional institute.



Ref: EY-000092651-
01

Section 1

Executive Summary

Gosport Borough Council 3



Ref: EY-000092651-
01

We are required to issue an annual audit letter to Gosport Borough Council (the Council) following completion of our audit procedures for the year ended 31 March
2020. Covid-19 had an impact on a number of aspects of our 2019/20 audit. We set out these key impacts below.

Gosport Borough Council 4

Executive Summary

Area of impact Commentary

Impact on the delivery of the audit

► Changes to reporting timescales As a result of Covid-19, new regulations, the Accounts and Audit (Coronavirus) (Amendment) Regulations 2020 No.
404, have been published and came into force on 30 April 2020. This announced a change to publication date for
final, audited accounts from 31 July to 30 November 2020 for all relevant authorities. We worked with the Council
to deliver our audit in line with the revised reporting timescale.

Impact on our risk assessment

► Valuation of Property Plant and Equipment
and Investment Property

The Royal Institute of Chartered Surveyors (RICS), the body setting the standards for property valuations, has
issued guidance to valuers highlighting that the uncertain impact of Covid-19 on markets might cause a valuer to
conclude that there is a material uncertainty in the valuations at year-end. Since late March 2020 in the UK, Covid-
19 has had a dramatic impact on the occupation of buildings due to the forced closure of restaurants, retail stores,
leisure, offices and hotels due to government regulation. We do not know how long the government’s measures will
last or how long businesses will be impacted. Rental income is expected to fall as tenants may default on their rents
or seek to negotiate rent reductions as they can no longer trade effectively.
• These issues could have a significant impact on investment properties and we therefore raised a significant risk in
relation to investment property valuations due to the materiality of this balance.
• Whilst we have not changed our overall risk assessment for the valuation of property, plant and equipment, we
have also undertaken additional procedures on assets within this balance valued on the basis of market information
(fair value / existing use value).

► Disclosures on Going Concern Financial plans for 2020/21 and medium term financial plans will need revision for Covid-19. We considered the
unpredictability of the current environment gave rise to a risk that the council would not appropriately disclose the
key factors relating to going concern, underpinned by managements assessment with particular reference to Covid-
19 and the Council’s actual year end financial position and performance.

► Adoption of IFRS 16 The adoption of IFRS 16 by CIPFA/LASAAC as the basis for preparation of local authority financial statements has
been deferred until 1 April 2022. The Authority will therefore no longer be required to undertake an impact
assessment, and disclosure of the impact of the standard in the financial statements does not now need to be
financially quantified in 2019/20. We therefore no longer consider this to be an area of audit focus for 2019/20.

► Consultation requirements Additional EY consultation requirements concerning the impact on auditor reports. The changes to audit risks and
audit approach changed the level of work we needed to perform.



Ref: EY-000092651-
01

Gosport Borough Council 5

Executive Summary (cont’d)

Area of impact Commentary

Impact on the scope of our audit

► Information Produced by the Entity (IPE) We identified an increased risk around the completeness, accuracy, and appropriateness of information produced by
the entity due to the inability of the audit team to verify original documents or re-run reports on-site from the
Council’s systems. We undertook the following to address this risk:
• Used the screen sharing function of Microsoft Teams to evidence re-running of reports used to generate the IPE
we audited; and
• Agree IPE to scanned documents or other system screenshots.



Ref: EY-000092651-01

The tables below set out the results and conclusions on the significant areas of the audit process.

Gosport Borough Council 6

Area of Work Conclusion

► Financial statements Unqualified – the financial statements give a true and fair view of the financial position of the Council as at
31 March 2020 and of its expenditure and income for the year then ended.

► Consistency of other information published with the
financial statements

Other information published with the financial statements was consistent with the Annual Accounts.

► Concluding on the Council’s arrangements for
securing economy, efficiency and effectiveness

We concluded that you have put in place proper arrangements to secure value for money in your use of
resources.

Area of Work Conclusion

Reports by exception:
► Consistency of Governance Statement The Governance Statement was consistent with our understanding of the Council.

► Public interest report We had no matters to report in the public interest.

► Written recommendations to the Council, which
should be copied to the Secretary of State

We had no matters to report.

► Other actions taken in relation to our responsibilities
under the Local Audit and Accountability Act 2014

We had no matters to report.

Executive Summary (cont’d)

Opinion on the Council’s:



Ref: EY-000092651-01

Executive Summary (cont’d)

Gosport Borough Council 7

As a result of the above we have also:

Area of Work Conclusion

Reporting to the National Audit Office (NAO) on our
review of the Council’s Whole of Government Accounts
return (WGA).

We had no matters to report.

Area of Work Conclusion

Issued a report to those charged with governance of
the Council communicating significant findings
resulting from our audit.

Our Audit Results Report was issued on 16 November 2020.

Issued a certificate that we have completed the audit in
accordance with the requirements of the Local Audit
and Accountability Act 2014 and the National Audit
Office’s 2015 Code of Audit Practice.

Our certificate was issued on 27 November 2020.

We would like to take this opportunity to thank the Council’s staff for their assistance during the course of our work.

Kevin Suter
Associate Partner
For and on behalf of Ernst & Young LLP



Ref: EY-000092651-
01

Section 2

Purpose and
Responsibilities
e
Responsibilities



Ref: EY-000092651-01

Purpose

Gosport Borough Council 9

The Purpose of this Letter

The purpose of this annual audit letter is to communicate to Members and external stakeholders, including members of the public, the key issues arising from
our work, which we consider should be brought to the attention of the Council.

We have already reported the detailed findings from our audit work in our 2019/20 Audit Results Report to the Policy & Organisation Board on 25 November
2020, representing those charged with governance. We do not repeat those detailed findings in this letter. The matters reported here are the most significant
for the Council.



Ref: EY-000092651-01

Responsibilities

Gosport Borough Council 10

Responsibilities of the Appointed Auditor

Our 2019/20 audit work has been undertaken in accordance with the updated Audit Plan that we issued on 28 July 2020 and is conducted in accordance with the
National Audit Office's 2015 Code of Audit Practice, International Standards on Auditing (UK), and other guidance issued by the National Audit Office.
As auditors we are responsible for:
► Expressing an opinion:

► On the 2019/20 financial statements; and
► On the consistency of other information published with the financial statements.

► Forming a conclusion on the arrangements the Council has to secure economy, efficiency and effectiveness in its use of resources.
► Reporting by exception:

► If the annual governance statement is misleading or not consistent with our understanding of the Council;
► Any significant matters that are in the public interest;
► Any written recommendations to the Council, which should be copied to the Secretary of State; and
► If we have discharged our duties and responsibilities as established by the Local Audit and Accountability Act 2014 and Code of Audit Practice.

Alongside our work on the financial statements, we also review and report to the National Audit Office (NAO) on your Whole of Government Accounts return. The
Council is below the specified audit threshold of £500m. Therefore, we did not perform any audit procedures on the return.

Responsibilities of the Council

The Council is responsible for preparing and publishing its statement of accounts accompanied by an Annual Governance Statement (AGS). In the AGS, the Council
reports publicly each year on how far it complies with its own code of governance, including how it has monitored and evaluated the effectiveness of its governance
arrangements in year, and any changes planned in the coming period.
The Council is also responsible for putting in place proper arrangements to secure economy, efficiency and effectiveness in its use of resources.



Ref: EY-000092651-01

Section 3

Financial Statement
Audit



Ref: EY-000092651-01 Gosport Borough Council 12

Key Issues
The Council’s Statement of Accounts is an important tool for the Council to show how it has used public money and how it can demonstrate its financial
management and financial health.
We audited the Council’s Statement of Accounts in line with the National Audit Office’s 2015 Code of Audit Practice, International Standards on Auditing (UK), and
other guidance issued by the National Audit Office and issued an unqualified audit report on 27 November 2020.
Our detailed findings were reported to the Policy & Organisation Board on 25 November 2020.

The key issues identified as part of our audit were as follows:

Financial Statement Audit

Significant Risk Conclusion

Misstatements due to fraud or error

The financial statements as a whole are not
free of material misstatements whether caused
by fraud or error.

As identified in ISA (UK) 240, management is in
a unique position to perpetrate fraud because
of its ability to manipulate accounting records
directly or indirectly and prepare fraudulent
financial statements by overriding controls that
otherwise appear to be operating effectively.

We identify and respond to this fraud risk on
every audit engagement

Our assessment of risk led us to create a series of criteria for the testing of journals, focusing specifically on areas
that could be open to management manipulation.  We also focused specifically on capitalisation of expenditure as a
potential area of manipulation, which is recorded as a separately identified significant risk on the next page of this
report.

Our work on estimates focussed on Investment Property valuation (identified as a significant risk estimate), and PPE
valuation and IAS19 pension estimates (identified as high risk estimates). Our findings on these areas are set out on
the subsequent pages in this section of our report.

Our approach focused on:
• Testing the appropriateness of journal entries recorded in the general ledger and other adjustments made in the
preparation of the financial statements.
• Assessing accounting estimates for evidence of management bias.
• Evaluating the business rationale for significant unusual transactions.

Further to this, we:
• Inquired of management about risks of fraud and the controls put in place to address those risks, as well as gaining
an understanding of the oversight given by those charged with governance of management’s processes over fraud.
• Considered the effectiveness of management’s controls designed to address the risk of fraud.

Our audit work has provided assurance that:

• We have not identified any evidence of material management override.
• We have not identified any instances of inappropriate judgements being applied or other management bias both in
relation to accounting estimates and other balances and transactions.
• We have not identified any other transactions which appeared unusual or outside the Authority‘s normal course of
business



Ref: EY-000092651-01 Gosport Borough Council 13

Financial Statement Audit (cont’d)

Significant Risk Conclusion

Risk of fraud in revenue and expenditure recognition -
Inappropriate capitalisation of revenue expenditure

Under ISA (UK) 240 there is a presumed risk that
revenue may be misstated due to improper revenue
recognition. In the public sector, this requirement is
modified by Practice Note 10 issued by the Financial
Reporting Council, which states that auditors should also
consider the risk that material misstatements may occur
by the manipulation of expenditure recognition.

We have assessed the risk is most likely to occur through
the inappropriate capitalisation of revenue expenditure,
as there is an incentive to reduce expenditure which is
funded from Council Tax. This could then result in
funding of that expenditure, that should properly be
defined as revenue, through inappropriate sources such
as capital receipts, capital grants, or borrowing.

The value of Property, Plant & Equipment (PPE)
additions in 2019/20 was £7.4m.

Our work focussed on any judgements exercised in determining whether expenditure was capital in nature,
and therefore appropriate to be capitalised rather than charged to the Comprehensive Income and
Expenditure Statement.

Our approach was as follows:
• We selected a sample of additions, using lowered testing thresholds, to test and confirm the item was
appropriate to capitalise through agreement to evidence such as invoices and capital expenditure
authorisations.
• When performing journals testing, we challenged entries that could be indicative of inappropriate
capitalisation, such any significant journals transferring expenditure from non- capital codes to PPE or
Investment Property additions, or from revenue to capital codes on the general ledger at the end of the
year.

We did not identify any indications of inappropriate capitalisation of revenue expenditure through the work
performed.

The key issues identified as part of our audit were as follows: (cont’d)



Ref: EY-000092651-01 Gosport Borough Council 14

Financial Statement Audit (cont’d)

Significant Risk Conclusion

Valuation of Investment Properties

The fair value of Investment Property (IP) represents a
significant balance in the Authority’s accounts and is
subject to valuation changes, impairment reviews and
market fluctuations. Management is required to make
material judgements and apply estimation techniques to
calculate the year-end balance recorded in the balance
sheet. ISAs (UK and Ireland) 500 and 540 require us to
undertake procedures on the use of management
experts and the assumptions underlying fair value
estimates.

The Royal Institute of Chartered Surveyors (RICS), the
body setting the standards for property valuations, has
issued guidance to valuers highlighting that the
uncertain impact of Covid-19 on markets might cause a
valuer to conclude that there is a material uncertainty in
the valuations at year-end.

Since late March 2020 in the UK, Covid-19 has had a
dramatic impact on the occupation of buildings due to
the forced closure of restaurants, retail stores, leisure,
offices and hotels due to government regulation. We do
not know how long the government’s measures will last
or how long businesses will be impacted. Rental income
is expected to fall as tenants may default on their rents
or seek to negotiate rent reductions as they can no
longer trade effectively. This could have a significant
impact on investment properties and we have therefore
raised a significant risk in relation to investment
property valuations.

The value of IP in the draft accounts at 31/03/2020 was
£6.4m.

We:
• Considered the work performed by the Authority’s valuer, including the adequacy of the scope of the work
performed, their professional capabilities and the results of their work.
• Sample tested key asset information used by the valuers in performing their valuation and challenge the
key assumptions used by the valuer.
• Tested accounting entries have been correctly processed in the financial statements.
• Ensured that appropriate disclosure has been made in the financial statements concerning the material
uncertainty.
• Obtained input from EY Real Estates, our internal specialists on asset valuations for Investment Properties,
including inputs on market sentiment and how it has been reflected in the estimated rental values/yields.

Our total sample for investment property valuations was sixteen items, with a total value of £6m.

We identified two audit differences through our work, which were adjusted by management. We were
therefore satisfied that Investment Properties are fairly stated and accurately disclosed in the audited
Statement of Accounts.

The key issues identified as part of our audit were as follows: (cont’d)



Ref: EY-000092651-01 Gosport Borough Council 15

Financial Statement Audit (cont’d)

Other Areas of Focus Conclusion

Valuation of Land and Buildings

The value of Property, Plant and Equipment (PPE)
represents a significant balance in the Authority’s
accounts and is subject to valuation changes,
impairment reviews and depreciation charges.
Management is required to make material judgemental
inputs and apply estimation techniques to calculate the
year-end balances recorded in the balance sheet.

In our audit plan update in July, we noted that the Royal
Institute of Chartered Surveyors (RICS), the body setting
the standards for property valuations, has issued
guidance to valuers highlighting that the uncertain
impact of Covid-19 on markets might cause a valuer to
conclude that there is a material uncertainty in the
valuations at year-end. This impact is expected to affect
PPE valued at Existing Use Value (EUV) and Fair Value
(FV) as the valuation basis for these properties is linked
to recent market transactions. We have not amended
our overall risk assessment for these types of assets, but
have undertaken additional procedures as noted below.

The net book value of PPE in the draft accounts at
31/03/2020 was £188m.

We:
• Considered the work performed by the Authority’s valuer, including the adequacy of the scope of the work
performed, their professional capabilities and the results of their work.
• Tested on a sample basis the accuracy of information used by the valuer in performing their valuations and
challenged the valuer’s key assumptions.
• Considered the annual cycle of valuations to ensure that assets have been valued within a suitable rolling
programme as required by the Code for PPE.
• Reviewed assets not subject to valuation in 2019/20 to confirm that the remaining asset base is not
materially misstated.
• Confirmed that accounting entries have been correctly processed in the financial statements.

Additional procedures on Existing Use Value and Fair Value assets:
• Considered the Authority’s asset base by type of asset and valuation methodology. From this, we decided
to obtain input from our internal specialists (EY Real Estates) in reviewing one asset valued at fair value,
from our total land and buildings sample of five assets.
• Ensured that appropriate disclosure has been made in the financial statements concerning the material
uncertainty.

We identified three audit differences through our work, which were adjusted by management. We were
therefore satisfied that Land and Buildings are fairly stated and accurately disclosed in the audited
Statement of Accounts.

The key issues identified as part of our audit were as follows: (cont’d)



Ref: EY-000092651-01 Gosport Borough Council 16

Financial Statement Audit (cont’d)

Other Areas of Focus Conclusion

Going Concern Disclosure

Covid-19 has created a number of financial pressures
throughout local government, increasing service demand
and expenditure. The Authority has incurred additional
expenditure in a number of areas of its operations and has
experienced income losses in parking, commercial and
leisure services. The extent of support from MHCLG has
developed over time, but does not include all financial
consequences of Covid-19.

There have been a number of media stories in both the
national press and trade publications raising the
possibilities of an increase in chief financial officers using
their s114 powers.  This could be under s114(3),
insufficient resources to fund likely expenditure.

CIPFA’s Code of Practice on Local Authority Accounting in
the United Kingdom 2019/20 sets out that organisations
that can only be discontinued under statutory prescription
shall prepare their accounts on a going concern basis.

However, International Auditing Standard 570 Going
Concern, as applied by Practice Note 10: Audit of financial
statements of public sector bodies in the United Kingdom,
still requires auditors to undertake sufficient and
appropriate audit procedures to consider whether there is
a material uncertainty on going concern that requires
reporting by management within the financial statements,
and within the auditor’s report. We are obliged to report on
such matters within the section of our audit report
‘Conclusions relating to Going Concern’. To do this, the
auditor must review management’s assessment of the
going concern basis applying IAS1 Presentation of
Financial Statements.

In light of the unprecedented nature of Covid-19, its impact on the funding of public sector entities and
uncertainty over the form and extent of government support, we sought a documented and detailed
consideration to support management’s assertion regarding the use of the going concern basis of
preparation. Our audit procedures to review this included consideration of:
• Current and developing environment;
• Liquidity (operational and funding);
• Mitigating factors;
• Management information and forecasting; and
• Sensitivities and stress testing.

Our conclusion was that the council has sufficient reserves to cope with the impact of Covid-19, and
sufficient liquidity.  We did not identified indications of material uncertainty, and were satisfied with the
Council’s disclosure that has been added to the accounts. There were no matters to be emphasised in our
audit report.

The key issues identified as part of our audit were as follows: (cont’d)



Ref: EY-000092651-01 Gosport Borough Council 17

Financial Statement Audit (cont’d)

Other Areas of Focus Conclusion

Pension Liability Valuation

The Local Authority Accounting Code of Practice and
IAS19 require the Authority to make extensive
disclosures within its financial statements regarding its
membership of the Local Government Pension Scheme
administered by Hampshire County Council. The
Authority’s pension fund deficit is a material estimated
balance and the Code requires that this liability be
disclosed on the Authority’s balance sheet. The
information disclosed is based on the IAS 19 report
issued to the Authority by the actuary to the County
Council.

Accounting for this scheme involves significant
estimation and judgement and therefore management
engages an actuary to undertake the calculations on
their behalf. ISAs (UK) 500 and 540 require us to
undertake procedures on the use of management
experts and the assumptions underlying fair value
estimates.

The net pension liability in the draft accounts at 31
March 2020 was £40.5m.

We:
• Liaised with the auditors of Hampshire County Council Pension Fund, to obtain assurances over the
information supplied to the actuary in relation to Southampton City Council.
• Assessed the work of the Pension Fund actuary (Aon Hewitt) including the assumptions they used by
relying on the work of PWC - Consulting Actuaries commissioned by the National Audit Office for all local
government sector auditors, and considering any relevant reviews by the EY actuarial team.
• Reviewed and tested the accounting entries and disclosures made within the Authority’s financial
statements in relation to IAS19

As a result of our work, we identified one audit difference in the financial statements which management
chose not to adjust. This was in relation to the rate of return assumptions used by the actuary of Hampshire
Pension Fund to determine their estimate of the Council’s defined benefit pension liability.  The final rate of
return from the pension fund audit differed from that assumed by the actuary.

The impact of the unadjusted audit difference was a £0.7m understatement of the net pension liability. We
agreed with management’s assessment that the impact was not material.

We had no other findings to report from our work

The key issues identified as part of our audit were as follows: (cont’d)



Ref: EY-000092651-01

Financial Statement Audit (cont’d)

Gosport Borough Council 18

Our application of materiality
When establishing our overall audit strategy, we determined a magnitude of uncorrected misstatements that we judged would be material for the financial
statements as a whole.

Item Thresholds applied

Planning materiality We determined planning materiality to be £1.23m (2019: £1.27m), which is 2% of gross revenue
expenditure reported in the accounts of £61.55 million.

We consider gross revenue expenditure to be one of the principal considerations for stakeholders in
assessing the financial performance of the Council.

Reporting threshold We agreed with the Policy & Organisation Board that we would report to the Committee all audit
differences in excess of £0.061m (2019: £0.064m).

We also identified the following areas where misstatement at a level lower than our overall materiality level might influence the reader. For these areas we
developed an audit strategy specific to these areas. The areas identified and audit strategy applied include:
► Remuneration disclosures including any severance payments, exit packages and termination benefits: These were tested in full as part of our audit.
► Related party transactions: These were tested in full as part of our audit.
We evaluate any uncorrected misstatements against both the quantitative measures of materiality discussed above and in light of other relevant qualitative
considerations.



Ref: EY-000092651-01

Section 4

Value for Money



Ref: EY-000092651-01 Gosport Borough Council 20

Value for Money

We are required to consider whether the Council has put in place ‘proper arrangements’ to secure economy, efficiency and effectiveness in its use of resources. This
is known as our value for money conclusion.
Proper arrangements are defined by statutory guidance issued by the National Audit Office. They comprise your arrangements to:
► Take informed decisions;
► Deploy resources in a sustainable manner; and
► Work with partners and other third parties.

Proper
arrangements for

securing value
for money

Informed
decision
making

Working with
partners and
third parties

Sustainable
resource

deployment

We did not identify any significant risks in relation to these criteria. This includes thorough
consideration of the impact of Covid-19 as noted above.
We therefore had no matters to report about your arrangements to secure economy, efficiency and
effectiveness in your use of resources.

On 16 April 2020 the National Audit Office published an update to auditor guidance in relation to
the 2019/20 Value for Money assessment in the light of Covid-19. This clarified that in
undertaking the 2019/20 Value for Money assessment auditors should consider NHS bodies’
response to Covid-19 only as far as it relates to the 2019-20 financial year; only where clear
evidence comes to the auditor’s attention of a significant failure in arrangements as a result of
Covid-19 during the financial year, would it be appropriate to recognise a significant risk in
relation to the 2019-20 VFM arrangements conclusion.



Ref: EY-000092651-01

Section 5

Other Reporting
Issues



Ref: EY-000092651-01

Whole of Government Accounts
We are required to perform the procedures specified by the National Audit Office on the accuracy of the consolidation pack prepared by the Council for Whole of
Government Accounts purposes.
The Council is below the specified audit threshold of £500m. Therefore, we were not required to perform any audit procedures on the consolidation pack.

Annual Governance Statement
We are required to consider the completeness of disclosures in the Council’s annual governance statement, identify any inconsistencies with the other information of
which we are aware from our work, and consider whether it is misleading.
We completed this work and did not identify any areas of concern.

Report in the Public Interest
We have a duty under the Local Audit and Accountability Act 2014 to consider whether, in the public interest, to report on any matter that comes to our attention in
the course of the audit in order for it to be considered by the Council or brought to the attention of the public.
We did not identify any issues which required us to issue a report in the public interest.

Written Recommendations
We have a duty under the Local Audit and Accountability Act 2014 to designate any audit recommendation as one that requires the Council to consider it at a public
meeting and to decide what action to take in response.
We did not identify any issues which required us to issue a written recommendation.

Other Reporting Issues

Gosport Borough Council 22

Objections Received
We did not receive any objections to the 2019/20 financial statements from members of the public.

Other Powers and Duties
We identified no issues during our audit that required us to use our additional powers under the Local Audit and Accountability Act 2014.



Ref: EY-000092651-01

Independence
We communicated our assessment of independence in our Audit Results Report to the Policy & Organisation Board on 25 November 2020. In our professional
judgement the firm is independent and the objectivity of the audit engagement partner and audit staff has not been compromised within the meaning regulatory and
professional requirements.

Control Themes and Observations
As part of our work, we obtained an understanding of internal control sufficient to plan our audit and determine the nature, timing and extent of testing performed.
Although our audit was not designed to express an opinion on the effectiveness of internal control, we are required to communicate to you significant deficiencies in
internal control identified during our audit.
We have adopted a fully substantive audit approach and have therefore not tested the operation of controls.
Our audit did not identify any controls issues to bring to the attention of the Policy & Organisation Board.

Gosport Borough Council 23

Other Reporting Issues (cont’d)



Ref: EY-000092651-
01

Section 6

Focused on your
future



Ref: EY-000092651-
01

The Code of Practice on Local Authority Accounting in the United Kingdom introduces the application of new accounting standards in future years. The impact on the Council
is summarised in the table below.

25

Focused on your future

Standard Issue Impact

IFRS 16 Leases It is currently proposed that IFRS 16 will be applicable for local authority
accounts from the 2022/23 financial year, following a recent further deferral
announced in December 2020.

Whilst the adoption of IFRS 16 has been deferred for a further year,
we encourage the Council to use that time to undertake a detailed
exercise to identify all of its leases during 21/22 and capture the
relevant information for them. The Council must ensure that all
lease arrangements are fully documented.

Gosport Borough Council



Ref: EY-000092651-
01

Audit Fees
Appendix A

[Insert Client Name] 26



Ref: EY-000092651-
01

Our fee for 2019/20 is set out in the table below.

27

Audit Fees

Description

Final Fee 2019/20

£

Planned Fee 2019/20

£

Scale Fee 2019/20

£

Final Fee 2018/19

£

Total Audit Fee 40,844 40,844 40,844 44,356

Scale Fee Rebasing:  Changes in work required to
address professional and regulatory requirements and
scope associated with risk (see page 28)

14,473 N/A

Revised Proposed Scale Fee 55,317 44,356

Covid 19 – Going Concern and consultation (1) 3,392 N/A

Covid 19 – increased property valuation risk /
additional work required to address identified audit
differences (1)

6,805 N/A

IAS 19 procedures (1) 801 N/A

Total Audit Fee 66,315 44,356

Note 1 - An additional scale fee of £10,998 has been applied to the planned fee based on the following items:

• The identification of Going Concern as an additional risk due to Covid-19 resulted in additional work including discussions, review/challenge of documents and cash flow
forecasts, and consideration of proposed disclosure. This additional time has been recorded at £2,808. An additional cost of £584 has also been charged as we were
required to consult with our professional practise department over the going concern disclosure in the accounts.

• The identification of the Valuation of Investment Properties as a significant risk resulted in additional work, notably larger sample sizes to be tested. In addition, we
identified audit differences from our samples for PPE and investment property valuation, which required further work. This additional time has been recorded at £3,576.

• As part of the significant risk work over Investment property valuation, and increased procedures over PPE valuation, we were required to engage with our internal
valuations specialists, EY Real Estates, to test a sample of assets. Based on the number of hours charged by EYRE, the additional cost is £3,229.

• An additional Scale Fee Variation of £801 has been submitted for IAS 19 Protocol Assurance provided by the Hampshire Pension Fund Auditors

These items are outside of the PSAA scale fee and remain subject to agreement with the Borough Treasurer and then PSAA.

The scale fee rebasing amount is subject to decision by PSAA (see page 28)
Gosport Borough Council



Ref: EY-000092651-
01

28

Scale Fee Rebasing: Changes in work required to address professional and regulatory requirements and scope associated with risk

Janet Dawson, our Government & Public Sector Assurance Lead, wrote to all Chief Finance Officers and Audit Committee (or equivalent) chairs on 11 February
2020 on the subject of the sustainability of UK local public audit.  Amongst other issues her letter stated that we did not believe the existing scale fees provide a
clear link with both a public sector organisation’s risk and complexity, and the audit profession’s context for cost and fee increases, including the attractiveness of
audit, investment in technology, innovation and the regulatory environment.
Around the same time, PSAA consulted on its 2020/21 audit fees (PSAA fee consulation), discussing the challenging environment, new standards and regulatory
requirements. They noted an appropriate forum for fee discussions from these impacts would be between the auditor and Chief Financial Officer, to take place as
soon as possible as part of planning discussions for 2019/20 audits.
The subsequent review by Sir Tony Redmond (Redmond Review) has also highlighted that audit fees in the local authority sector have dropped significantly at the
same time that audit fees in other sectors have significantly risen, and that no assessment of the amount it would cost to audit each local authority based on their
level of audit risk has been made in the past ten years due to the methods applied by the Audit Commission and then PSAA.  As such there is no guarantee that
the fee paid by each local authority accurately reflects the risk profile or amount of audit work required for their external audit.
To address these issues we undertook an analysis of the changes in professional and regulatory requirements since our last tender to PSAA was submitted, and
any other known changes in audit risk.  For instance, where applicable, significant commercial property investments, creation of joint ventures, subsidiaries and
other similar arrangements.
We identified the proposed fee rebasing under the headings of:
• Changes in risk;
• Increased regulatory requirements; and
• Client readiness and ability to support a technologically enabled audit.

As requested by PSAA, we discussed this with management on 9 June 2020

We did not reach agreement. While management recognised many of these pressures and can see how they are reflected in the changes in the audit work, their
view was that this is a decision for PSAA.

Having not reached agreement, and in light of managements comments, we will now submit the proposed rebasing to PSAA for their review and decision.  We
would like to thank management for their contribution to this debate and the positive manner in which they engaged with us.

Audit Fees continued

Gosport Borough Council



29

EY | Assurance | Tax | Transactions | Advisory

About EY
EY is a global leader in assurance, tax, transaction
and advisory services. The insights and quality
services we deliver help build trust and confidence
in the capital markets and in economies the world
over. We develop outstanding leaders who team to
deliver on our promises to all of our stakeholders.
In so doing, we play a critical role in building a better
working world for our people, for our clients and for
our communities.

EY refers to the global organization, and may refer
to one or more, of the member firms of Ernst & Young
Global Limited, each of which is a separate legal entity.
Ernst & Young Global Limited, a UK company limited
by guarantee, does not provide services to clients.
For more information about our organization, please
visit ey.com.

© 2018 EYGM Limited.
All Rights Reserved.

ED None

EY-000070901-01 (UK) 07/18. CSG London.

In line with EY’s commitment to minimise its
impact on the environment, this document has
been printed on paper with a high recycled content.

This material has been prepared for general informational purposes
only and is not intended to be relied upon as accounting, tax, or other
professional advice. Please refer to your advisors for specific advice.

ey.com



T
his page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	3 Minutes of previous meeting
	Minutes

	6 Audit Progress Report to 28th January 2021
	6 Appendix A Internal Audit Progress Report feb 21

	7 Annual Audit Letter
	7 Gosport BC Annual Audit Letter 2019-20


